
Goodhue County Board of Adjustment

Government Center- Board Room

509 West 5th St, Red Wing MN 55066

Call Meeting To Order

Approval Of Current Agenda

Approval Of Previous Month's Meeting Minutes

October 24, 2022 BOA Meeting Minutes

BOAMEETINGMINUTES_OCTOBERMEETING_DRAFT.PDF

Conflict/Disclosure Of Interests

PUBLIC HEARING: Request For Variance To Minimum Setback Standards

Request for Variance, submitted by Mitchell Breuer (Applicant) on behalf of Susan 

Matthees (Owner) to allow construction of a grain bin less than 60 feet from the 215th 

Avenue Right-of-Way. Parcel 33.034.0400. 39303 215th AVE Goodhue, MN 55027. Part of 

the NW ¼ of Section 34 TWP 111 Range 15 in Goodhue Township. A1 Zoned District.  

BOAPACKET_BREUER.PDF

Adjourn

Planning Commission Meeting

Joint Discussion PAC And BOA

Anyone interested is invited to attend. Agenda items may be subject to change. 

Goodhue County Land Use Management

w  Goodhue County Government Center w  509 West Fifth Street w  Red Wing w  Minnesota w  55066 w

w  Building w Planning w  Zoning w  Telephone: 651/385 -3104 w Fax: 651/385 -3106 w

1.

Documents:

Documents:

http://mn-goodhuecounty.civicplus.com/
https://co.goodhue.mn.us/4d44197c-ebc0-4254-9338-68935ced86f1


BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT 
GOODHUE COUNTY, MN 

 October 24, 2022 MEETING MINUTES 
DRAFT 

 
                                              

1 

 

 

 
The meeting of the Goodhue County Board of Adjustment was called to order at 5:00 PM by Chair Daniel 
Knott at the Goodhue County Government Center Board Room.   

Roll Call  

Commissioners Present: Daniel Knott, Randy Rechtzigel, Scott Breuer, Dennis Tebbe, and Keith 
Allen (arrived 5:02PM). 

Commissioners Absent: Darwin Fox    

Staff Present: Zoning Administrator Samantha Pierret, Zoning Assistant Alexandra Koberoski, and 
Zoning Administrative Assistant Patty Field 

1. Approval of Agenda 
1Motion by Commissioner Tebbe and seconded by Commissioner Rechtzigel to approve the meeting 
agenda.     

 
Motion carried 4:0 

2. Approval of Minutes  
2Motion by Commissioner Tebbe and seconded by Commissioner Breuer to approve the previous 
month’s meeting minutes.   

  
Motion carried 4:0 
 

3. Conflict/Disclosure of Interest 
 

There were no conflicts of interest reported.     
  
4. Public Hearings:  
 
PUBLIC HEARING: Request for Variance to Minimum Setback Standards 
Request for Variance, submitted by Lariat Companies, Inc. (Owners) to allow construction of a structure 
addition for a self-service storage facility less than 45 feet from the Ash Court Right-of-Way. Parcel 
28.131.0030. 32072 Ash Court Cannon Falls, MN 55009. Lot 3 Block 1 of the Evolve Replat in Cannon 
Falls Township. B Zoned District.   
 
Koberoski presented the staff report and attachments. 

Chair Knott opened the Public Hearing 

No one spoke for or against the request.     
3After Chair Knott asked three times for comments it was moved by Commissioner 
Rechtzigel and seconded by Commissioner          Allen to close the Public Hearing. 
 
Motion carried 5:0 
 
Commissioner Tebbe noted that this is a practical and normal request and he can certainly support this 
request for a variance.  
 
Commissioner Rechtzigel stated he agreed, as long as this doesn’t go out any further than the existing 
buildings.    
 
Commissioner Allen asked if Randy Rechtzigel would have access to his property?   
 



BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT 
GOODHUE COUNTY, MN 

 October 24, 2022 MEETING MINUTES 
DRAFT 

 
                                              

2 

 

 

 
Pierret stated that yes, Mr. Rechtzigel would have access to his property.    
4Motion by Breuer, seconded by Allen for the Board of Adjustment to: 

• adopt the staff report into the record;  
• adopt the findings of fact;  
• accept the application, testimony, exhibits, and other evidence presented into the record; and 

APPROVE the request for a variance, submitted by Lariat Companies Inc. (Owners) to B Zoning 
District standards to construct a 48-foot by 51-foot storage building addition no less than 25 feet 
from the Ash Court Right-of-Way. 
 
Motion carried 5:0 
   
5. Other-Discussion  

Pierret stated that there are no agenda items for the BOA next month.  PAC has one item on the agenda. 
The meeting next month will be a combined meeting for BOA and PAC on Monday, November 14th at 
5:30pm.  The PAC will conduct their meeting then there will be open discussion on various topics and a 
recap of 2022 activities. 

 

ADJOURN 
5Motion by Rechtzigel, seconded by Tebbe to adjourn the BOA meeting at 5:14 PM.  

Motion carried 5:0 

Respectfully submitted:   
 
Patty Field, Zoning Administrative Assistant 
 
MOTIONS 

1 APPROVE the meeting agenda.                                                                                                                    
Motion carried 4:0 
2 APPROVE the previous meeting minutes.  
 Motion carried 4:0  
3 Close the Public Hearing 
Motion carried 5:0 
4 APPROVE the Variance request to ROW setbacks.   
Motion carried 5:0  
5 ADJOURN 
Motion carried 5:0  

 

                                                        



 
 

 

“To effectively promote the safety, health, and well-being of our residents” 
www.co.goodhue.mn.us 

Page 1 of 3 

Environmental Health | Land Surveying | GIS 
Telephone:  651.385.3223 

Fax:  651.385.3098 

Lisa M. Hanni, L.S. Director 
Building | Planning | Zoning  
Telephone: 651.385.3104 
Fax: 651.385.3106 

Goodhue County Land Use Management 
Goodhue County Government Center | 509 West Fifth Street | Red Wing, Minnesota 55066 

 County Surveyor / Recorder 

To:  Board of Adjustment 
From: Land Use Management  
Meeting Date: November 14, 2022 
Report date: November 4, 2022 
 
PUBLIC HEARING: Request for Variance by Mitchell Breuer (Applicant) on behalf of Susan Matthees 
(Owner) to A-1 Zoning District standards to construct a grain bin less than 60 feet from the 215th Avenue 
Right-of-Way.  

Application Information: 
Applicant(s): Mitchell Breuer (Applicant) on behalf of Susan Matthees (Owner) 
Address of zoning request: 39303 215th AVE Goodhue, MN 55027  
Parcel: 33.034.0400 
Abbreviated Legal Description: Part of the NW ¼ of Section 34 TWP 111 Range 15 in Goodhue 
Township. 
Township Information: Goodhue Township signed acknowledgment of the variance request with no 
additional comments.  
Zoning District: A-1 (Agricultural Protection District) 
 
Attachments and Links: 
Application and submitted project summary  
Site Plan and Maps 
Goodhue County Zoning Ordinance:  
http://www.co.goodhue.mn.us/DocumentCenter/View/2428  
 
Background:  
Mitchell Breuer on behalf of Susan Matthees (Owner) has applied for a variance to A-1 minimum 
setback standards to construct a 42-foot wide grain bin on the east side of an existing property, north 
of existing grain bins and a machine shed. The proposed grain bin would be 32.3-feet from the 215th 
Avenue Right-of-Way line at its closest point where 60 feet is required. 

Variance Standards: 
Variances shall only be permitted when they are in harmony with the general purposes and intent of 
the Goodhue County Zoning Ordinance and when consistent with the adopted comprehensive plan. 
Variances may be granted when the applicant establishes “practical difficulties” exist in complying 
with the existing official controls. Practical difficulties mean the applicant proposes to use the 
property in a reasonable manner not permitted by an official control, the plight of the landowner is 
due to circumstances unique to the property not created by the landowner, and the variance, if 
granted, will not alter the essential character of the locality. Economic considerations alone do not 
constitute practical difficulties.  
 
Draft Findings of Fact: 
 
1) Harmony with the general purposes and intent of the official control: 

 Property line and Right-of-Way setbacks are intended to create separation among adjacent 
structures and roads to allow for adequate access and accommodate future road expansion. 

 The grain bin is proposed to replace an existing bin located less than 60 feet from the County 
215th Avenue Right-of-Way. There are two additional grain bins on the property and two 



“To effectively promote the safety, health, and well-being of our residents” 
www.co.goodhue.mn.us 

Page 2 of 3 

machine sheds all less than 60 feet from the right-of-way. All of these are considered existing 
non-conforming structures. The right-of-way authority, Goodhue Township, reviewed the 
request and signed the variance application acknowledgment with no additional comments 
regarding negative impacts to the right-of-way if the grain bin is constructed. This request 
appears in harmony with the purpose and intent of the official control.  

2) The variance request is consistent with the adopted Comprehensive Plan: 

 The Goodhue County Comprehensive Plan supports agricultural industries in agricultural 
districts.  

The proposed grain bin appears consistent with the Goodhue County Comprehensive Plan. 

3) There are “practical difficulties” in complying with the official control (the 
applicant proposes to use the property in a reasonable manner not permitted by an 
official control, the plight of the landowner is due to circumstances unique to the 
property not created by the landowner, and the variance, if granted, will not alter 
the essential character of the locality): 

 The Applicant’s request to construct a grain bin is a reasonable use of property in the A-1 
District. The bin, as proposed, would meet all other required setbacks including Shoreland 
setbacks and elevation requirements.  

 The parcel is an existing, 96.5-acre parcel which is a conforming lot size in the A-1 District (2-
acre minimum). The property contains a single-family dwelling, grain bins, and 
residential/agricultural storage buildings.  

 The Applicant stated that there are no alternative locations for the grain bin due to the 
location of the other grain bins and machine sheds and the presence of a drainageway 
classified as Shoreland to the west. All structures are required to maintain a 100-foot setback 
from the Ordinary High Water Mark of any public waterway with a Shoreland classification.   

 The existing structures obtained appropriate permits required at the time of construction 
between the 1980s and early 2000s.  

 The property is surrounded by A1-zoned properties on all sides.   

 The request appears unlikely to alter the essential character of the locality. 

4) No variance may be granted that would allow any use that is not allowed in the 
zoning district in which the subject property is located.  

 Grain bins are a permitted use in the A-1 Zoning District. The request does not constitute a 
use variance.  

 

The draft Findings of Fact shall be amended to reflect concerns conveyed at the Board of Adjustment 
meeting and public hearing. 
 

The Board should specify the facts and reasons that are the basis of the Board’s determination. In 
granting a variance, the Board of Adjustment may impose conditions directly related to, and bearing a 
rough proportionality with, the impact(s) created by the variance. 

 
Staff Recommendation: 

• adopt the staff report into the record;  
• adopt the findings of fact;  
• accept the application, testimony, exhibits, and other evidence presented into the record; and 

 

APPROVE the request for a variance, submitted by Mitchell Breuer (Applicant) on behalf of Susan 
Matthees (Owner) to A-1 Zoning District standards to construct a 42-foot wide grain bin no less than 
32 feet from the 215th Avenue Right-of-Way. 
 
 
 
 




















	Roll Call
	1. Approval of Agenda
	Motion carried 4:0
	Motion carried 4:0
	Chair Knott opened the Public Hearing
	No one spoke for or against the request.
	3F Motion by Breuer, seconded by Allen for the Board of Adjustment to:



